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INTRODUCTION

Tte full style and title is the Clyde Cruising Club Dinghy Section but to
thousands of yachtsmen who learned to sall there it im aimply Bardowie}; and to

any sailor the place ha or she firat experienced the magic of a boat alipping
along with only the force of the wind in its sails 18 a place to remember forever.

in this its Jubilee ycar Bardowie has been remembered by members past and
present who have gailed the oceana of the world having first sailed on the Loch
and by those who, despite having tasted the excitement of transatlantic racing,
8111l regularly sail at Bardowie. Bardowie was the result of a dream to provide
a place where people, predominantly young though not neceasarily 80, c¢ould learn
tc sail cheaply and safely. Tt was, and still is, unique in that all the boats
are Club-owned and practically all the necessary maintenance and repairs are
carried out by Club members. In this way Bardowie does more than aimply teach
its members how to =ail boats; they learn about boats - and Jetties, buildinge
and club administration. Self help is one of the cornerstones of Rardowie and
in this account of the first fifty years the reasder may be surprised to see
little reference by name to those who have worked Bo hard and given so much

time and effort to giving us the Bardowie of today. This lack of acknowledge~-
ment ie quite deliberate, since by the nature of those who do mo much in the
background as well as the foreground, they do not seek publiclty. There nre
many instances of generosity to Bardowie, both in time and money thnt enn

never be recorded; to mention a few would be to omit many nnd that would ba
unjust. Those who have helped Bardowie along in any way, no matter how small,
have the satisfaction of seeing the end resuvlt. Bardowle is only a small patch
of water, under a mile long and about a quarter of a mile wide, set in beauti ful,
picturesque surroundings and providing home for a variety of wildlife. On n
lazy summer evening it can provide a wonderful escape from the trials cf a
working day, and in a gale of wind it can give exciting sailing. I am oure

that it will always be held in Areat affection by those who learned to aail
there and used it as a springboard to go on to rreater things, as well ra by
those who atill sail at the Loch. 1Its appeal may be difficult to define and
may be different to each irdividual - but that it has an everlasting appeal

can never bs in any doubt. .
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"I first aniled round Bnrdowie loch
alngle-handed then became more
ambitiouas and did the same thing round

the World," Kdwnrd Allcard

THE CREATION OF BARDOWIE

At the General Meeting of the Clyde Cruising Club on 218t November 1927,

Mr. A. Wotherspoon aspoke regarding the necessity of encouraging the younger
members to take an active interest in sailing, and he suggested that if
suitable water could be found near Glasgow, a number of 1h-feet centre-hoard
dinghies should be built for the use of Cadets and Members. Mr. Wotherspoen
asked to form a committee to lock into the project and he and Frank Rlair,
Willieam Lynll, Leslie Pnrrott nnd Jimmy tardie were duly elected.

Thus wae the firat formnl mention of the Dinghy Section noted in the Club'se
racords and indeed reported in the prenss next day. llewever, the idea hud

bean fermenting in the minds of neveral members for nome Lima, In the yearn
after the First World War there waa n great enthusiasm for yachting and
cruising among many people who found it was a way of escaping from the

turmeil of the war that they hnd endured. However, yachting carried with it
the image of large steam yachts and Britannia and Shamrock, with owners and
fFueats in Blue Nlazer, White Flannel and Yachting Caps. Youngaters had little
chance to sail as the snort wan essentially for men only, with families left
behind and, contrary to the Club 5ong, membership was not "prowing and
Frowing". Severnl members decided that this atate of affairs shonld be
changed and that a wider circle of peopla should be made aware of the pleasures
of sniting.



William Lyall was principal ameng this movement and it wus he who recognised
the need to "catch 'en young'', which led to the idea of o place where young
members ¢ould lesrn to sail cheaply and safely. The idea was discussed in
many anchoruges, and in the Club Room in Renfield Streaet, and vventually the
vust majority of members wero enthusiustically supporting the lormation of a
Dinghy Secticn, which would be provided with dinghles designed for salcty
rather than speed. The Sub-Committes reported occuvionally in the yours up
to' 1932, and although little progress wus formully noted, the search for
suituble fuacilities continued through the ywars of Depression. It wus not
until Qctober 1932 that the Comnittes was informed negotiotions were
sufficiently advanced to take the matter to a General Meeting of the Club, to
seek approval to form a Dinghy Section at Bardowie Loch. Bardowie wus in fact
the smallest of several Lochs considered, including Lech Thom and Castle
Semple Loch. However, it wus most suiteble for several reasons; including
convenience of travel from Glasgow by public transport, good searoom with
clear shores and pleasant surroundings that would give steady winds and the
availability of space to build Clubhouse.

A circular wes sent to all members prior to the November Genersal Meeting,
setting out the objectives of the Section which were; firstly, %o provide
Sailing facilities during the waeek throughout the asummer when it was nat
convenient to travel to the coasl; secondly, to instruct the members and
cadets in the handling and racing of dinghies; and thirdly, to institute
evening races and gonerally encourage small boat sailing. The Club would
advance sufficient funds to pay the rental of the Loch, build and equip boats,
provide a Clubhouse, Moorings, Rucing Murks, etc. and engage a Waterman. The
Section would repuy this loun over a period of 6 Years und, to meet Lhis
liubility, would meke a charge to its mambers. Ip addition, a guaresntees fund
could be set up. Privately-owned boats would not be barred, but their design
would be subject to approvul, and their owners would be churged un additiocusl
subscription. The matter wus discussed fully at the Generul Mueting which was
brought forward to 3rd November. William Lyall spoke for the proposai. and,
although there were some members in opposition on such grounds as the remote-
ness of Burdowie and the tying up of Club funds, the motiag to form the Section
was passed unanimously and 40 of the 57 members present intimated an intention
to join. Not only was the motion carried but a guarantee fund was set up there
and then, with 18 members underwriting & total of £195. The amount of this
fund at a time of depression, when the Club's Dinner Dance wag reduced to a
mere Supper Dance at 12/6d. per head, is a measure of the enthusissm for the
formatior of a Dinghy Section.

Thus on 3rd November, 1932 the Clyde Cruising Club formally decided to aet up
a Dinghy Section and to make a firm affer for an initigl five-year leuse of
Bardowie Loch.,

Things got under way quickly with a committee including William Lyall, ¥, Blair,
J. Johnstone and L. Parrott, ang by December of 1932 the Jecretary, C.K. Young,
was writing to the factor for Bardowie, offering L25 per annum for a S-year
lease with a break after 3 years. The Dinghy Section met twice in February 193%
to discuss the design of the boats, which wus undertaken by Willium Lynll and
Lealie Parrott of G.L. Watson & Company. The original Club design was for a
round bilge boat, However, J, Adam of Gourock dubmitted an alternative hard
chine design, which he wan prepared to build ror £16 each against £30 which he
would have asked for a round bilge boat. After consulting all the members it
was dacided to accept this quotation and that of Messrs. J. MclFartane for sails
at £8, with delivery of the boats in early April.

By the end of March the 6 boats were well under way and a quotution of £31 had

been accepted for w Clubhouse, including founds, which waa built on the site of
the present sail ahed. This original Clubhouse was butlt partly over water, on
slilte, and staging was byilt in front with [inger jetty sbout the same
Tenglh os Lhe present Mouting Jetty. At that time the usrea was not nearly wso

open ad it now du.s The peth Ted from the rond Lo a derelict atone bonthouns,
rouphly ol Lho gaut ond of Lhe praesent hard, and cuntinued to Lhe Clubhoune.
There wiws no Loutshed, puint shed or building where the present Clubhouse

slinds and, of course, there wad no hard. The path wus wooded on both sides
all the wuy Lo the end, much as it is toduy between the boatshed and present
Clubhouse.

Moorings and recing morke were assembled and laid, two rowing dinghies obtained,
one & Smiths dinghy purchased for £10. Although all the property was then
insured, It was decided thut a premium of L2 per boat wpa excessive and they
were left uninsured.

On the Iinanciul front the Section secured overdraft facilities for £150,

using Club war stock as security, although there was of course the Guuarantee
Fund to full buck on. Subscription waus fixed at £1.10/- for Ordinury Members
and 15/~ for Lodies and Cadets which, with boats then cosling £16, mukes
intervating comparison wilh the present duy subscription of £25 and cost of
bouts of around £1,500, The boals were not ready by April but this left time
to complete arrangements for the opening, draw up the Club rules and engage o6y
Waterman o genilal Irishmun, John McShea, who was paid 15/- per weell.  Although
the Waterman was nlways present, sailing was not to take place uniess the
Steward, who wus chosen on & rota from the senior members, was also present.

1t wun ngreed to provide a partition in the Clubhouse to form an extrua reom,
and te provide a chemicul toilet "to the aatisfuction of the Sanitury Inspector™.
The Clubhouse was fitted with a Yale lock, and all members wers issued with a
numbered key which sorved as a membership card.  Waler was not provided and
electricily wus not wven conaidered. 12 Board of Trade Kapok Lifujackets were
provided but their use wns not compulsory and left to the discrelion of the
Steword.  Finally, s systes was drawn up for wllocating boats snd crews - Lhe
log book. Bordowie had bsen put together in six months at u conl of £26h,1.84,
and now everything wos ready for the opuning.

On Thursday, 18th May 1933 at s ceremony on the jetty, attended by representatives
of £11 Clyde Yacht Cluba, the Commodore Sir Thomas Dunlop, Bt. gave the signal
to break out an ensign declaring Dardowie open. In his opening speech he noted
that "We huve ot to get it intc the minds of the youny that we ure a maritime
nution. We have gol to give them a chance first of all to be ywchtsmen. They
cunnot all be shipowners but they can easily own a bont on a loch like this™.
The skippering sysbem which was inaugurated soon after has certuinly piven many
nen-owners the chance to look nfter s bout of their own, and every Hardowie
member hus of cource always been reapensible in s smoll way for the upkeep of
the baats.

Immediately after the opening ceremony there was a race, which although atarting
in a culm finished in a good breeze with H.C. Wurren leading home Frunk Blair
und Leslie Parrott. Also in the race were k.L. Reid, J. Adum, Lhe bostbuilder
and Sir Alustuir Young of Seawanaka Cup fame, who wus holder of key No, 1 of
Rurdowie.

‘Lhe Section was not restricted to Cadets, and Senior Members wereo encoursged to
Jein., lowever, it was primarily for the training of young people, and while o
Cadet Section did exist within the Club, it consiated mainly of sons of members
and way Tairly bonll. Although the number of Cadets wns destined to Arow
through the very exinlence of Bardowie, the process wus helped conuiderably by
a cloge wssocistion with the Scouts, muny of whom then Jeined Burdowie. 'There
wiere ubout 730 membera in this rirat year and right from the sturt Points



racing was held on three nights a week, with one series running until July and
another starting in August. Cups were presented by Mr. Nipal Laird “or senicre
and juniors, though where these trophieas are now in not kriown. Hepinnera had
to sit a tesat on the rules of the road and Racing "Mles na wall an seamanahip,

The boats, all in different colours with numbers on boat and sails, had planked
hard chine hulls with web freames at 2 ft. centres and three 3" aquare timbers
between. The decks were canvassed and there was a rpised coaming nlt round
which made sitting out a painful nrocess. lowever. to minimige the need for
this they were deliberately beamy with a high freeboard and a 5" 1b centre-
board to give safety and stability for teaching purposes. Sitting inside was
not much eanier as there were no side benches and only one thwart. The aailsa
were, of course, cotton and were carried on the weoden mast and boom by slides
in a track., The boats were 12ft. long with & beam of 4'10" and freeboard 19 ins.
They drew 6" on the hull and 30" with the centreboard down, and lay at moorings
with sails and gear stowed ashore in the Clubhouse. The Sail arem wns only

RO Bq.ft.; however this waa quite enough te cause problems during a cnrelena
#ybe, since the boats had no kicking strap but did have a standing backatay
which caught a high boom with obvious disnstrous results! This backstay wans,
however, later removed since the mast with lower and upper shrouwda nnd wide
spreadere was quite ndequately stayed.

THE  KARLY YEARS

The first season, a summer of glorisus weather, was highly successful although
at the General Meeting in November 1933, William Lyall had to eomment on the
neglect of gear and non-attendance of stewards - which scem familiar themes to
modern members! However, the hoats came through the menson well and in the
following spring one was specially fitted out at Thorneycrefts worka in Glasgow
and exhibited at the Scout Exhibition in Kelvin Hnll, where she aroumed
considernble interest. The second scason then opened en the last Saturday in
April, with 24 stewnrds on the list as well as the paid Watermnn. Pointe racing
started straight away with formal protest meetings held on the last Thursday

of every month. The members were not content to sit still and soon inter-club
team races were being arranged, and proposals emerged to increase the fleet to
nine boats and to extend the Clubhouse. .J. Adam insisted on raising the price
of the hoats to A princely £23. However, orders were placed and the coat wns met
by 5ir Thomas Dunleop and Col. Spencer who donated ene hoat each, nnd W, Bergius

and R. Mowat who donated the third. A launching ramp wns built out from the side of

Jetty and the Clubhouse wns extended at a cost of £4, to provide rather batter
nccommodation for the ladies, although it could be arpued that it was mtill
fairly basic. One feature which started in 1934 and which was to last nntil
196, 'was the use of the Club boats for a small donation by the Roynl Technical
College School of Navigation, whone Principal, Copt. Charles !I. BRrown. was n
pood friend of the C.C.C.

lowever, probably the most important innovation of 1930 was the Trophy donated
by Nigel Laird, the Commodore of the Royal Scottish Motor Yacht Club, for a
series of inter-Club races at Bardowis. Although now changed in nature to a
cne dny inter-achool challenge trophy, the original races were spread over
several weeks and school teams were actuamlly barred after the first two years,
The teams taking part in the firat races were loch Long Sailing Club,
Merchistonians, Ayr Yacht Club, Bardowie Cadeta, Clyde Cruising Club lLadies,
Technical College and Clyde Cance Club, and the eventual winners in a final salled
in a gale of wind were C.C.C. Ladies, the only time n Ladies' team has worn

the Trophy. Kventually in pre-War days up to 16 clubs took part in the series.
Al this racing took place with only recluctant support from the Commodare who
regarded it as unfortunately inevitable, and yet it tock place apsinst the
backdrop of the Club's first Ocean Race, which tock place in 1937, although

by 1935 the Club was still banning the use of spinnakers in ita roaces, .

By the 1935 season the range of Club activitiea was beginning to follow a now
familiar form. The Lhreas new boata were launched by Col. Spencer at the
Opening Uay on 15th April, and from then until the end of June Points Hnces
were held every wooknight for the new l'ointa Cup preaenled by William lynll
and the finnl, whlch wan recaed by winners from each night, wns wan hy

W.A. Bergius. The Laird Trophy wan sailed in Scptember and Uctober nnd
evontually won with n narrow margin by lilasgow Academicnle. AL thet time
cnpsizing, whils accepted ns nn inevitable part of Dinghy sailing, wan slightly
frowned upon and connidered ta show lnck of fitill. A note in the 1936 Journal
mentions Lhe numboer of "tapelvals” being reduced from 12 to I per oannum, which
was considered o be a very much better performance than in previous years,
when in frct the very first "eapsizal" by Norrie Chesters was worthy of
discussion by the Committee. By the time Larkn were introduced to Lhe Loch in
the late 605 o dozen capaizes a day would not hnve been considered out of the
place.

At the end of 1915 the Club suffered a blow when o gale put six boats and the
rowing dinghy nshore and capsized the other three at their mooringa. lowever,
the Club recovered and deapite having to replank the rowing dinghy, all the
repairs were completed during the winter by the members in time for Opening Day
1036, Thia day naw the unuanal apectacle of two dinghiea raciug two canoces
from the Clyde Canoe Club with the dinghies winning. 1936 alno snw the
introduction of the laat fealure required to make Bardowie as {t ia today - the
Regntta. This wam organined ty Stanley MacKechnie and held on 22nd Aupust, and
as well as races included an atuatic pillow fight, cock fipht on raft, obatacle
race and a tub race in which most if not all of the tubs capalzed at the gtart!
Other items nddad during the yeara included a greaoy pole, lilo race, relay
race and a sculling race which produced n time of 24 secs. from he east end of
the present hard to the Sallahed Jetty.

The years up to the War found Pardowis establishing for {tmelf a pattern of
activitics much as 1t is today. Opening 'ay was at the end of April and two
months of Peinte Racing on every night of the week followed, with a final then
at the end of June., The Regaltn was at the end of August although an ndditional
one was held for the Coronation in 1937. Towards the end of the season the
Nigel Laird Trophy, as it was then known, wne held with the Club's men
eventually winning it in 1936. There was a great family atmosphere at the

Club, with nt least thirteen families known to be membera st one time. This,

of course, inevitably meant romance betwsen the younger members and led to the
firat of many marringen which owa thelr oxistenee to Bardowis, ‘Phe Club had
then, an it std1l dren, a hard core of membera who did most of the anilling and
working, but of courne a great camaraderic existed and on Saturday evening in
winter they would often benrd a wooden meated bus, ond go into town lor tea and
on to a rhow al the Wilaon Bnrrett Theatpn - in Lhe poda, of cournc! Many of
the preasent acnior members of Lhae Club, Including the fmmedinle Pant Commodare,
John Mi11a, owoed Lhe!lr nalling eduentlon to DBardowie in these daya. 1n fact,
Mec Bipgar reecnlls that the memory of seeing n dinghy clawing off a les shore
nt fardowie helped him many yanrn later in n similar situntion with a 10-tonner!

During this peried a party led by William Lyall carried out a full hydropgrephic
aurvey of the Tach nnd produced a chart some ShY by ?7". Although the chart is
now reported lost the nnmes of the surveyors are immortalised st Johnstone's
Patch, named after Jimmy Johnstone: Dod Tale, after Doddy (George) lynil, a
brother of William Lyall: nnd leslie Iale, after Leslie Parrott, owevar,
donations from this time which did last many years included a dack meat from
R“S Tonn, presented by Walter Bergius, and from Capt. J.%. Cattanach the ship's
bell from I8 Bhamo, which was mounted on a wooden base and used for starting
racer and penerally drawing attention up to 1977, when it wns lost in a fire.



Also during this period the administration of the Section became established.
Bardowie had been set up by the older grneration and of course by the main Club.
C.K. Young, who had been Club Secretary since its inception in 1909, took on
the duties of Burdowie Secretary at first, though this passed to B3ill fyon in
the second year. The day-to-day affairs of Bardowie were run by a Committes,
generally led by William Lyall. This state of uffairs wus satisfuctory for Lhe
first two years while the Section ran under the impetus of its creation.
ilowever, by the 1935 season boats and property were requiring maintenance and

a recognised leader wus clearly required. The older generation decided that
the youngsters who used the Club should now run it, and after a stormy General
Meeting in 1935 Stanley MacKechnie emerged as Hardowie Secretary and a new post
of Captain was created. This was filled by Jumes McIntyre, & kind and jolly
man, yet one who was undeniably strict and demanded his own way, Lo the exlent
that he was at one time alwost chased away from the Loch. "That he was not lost
to Burdowie was, indeed, a blessing since without him it is quite possible that
the-Section would not have survived the War as a thriving corganisation.

One sad event in 3937 was the death of William Lyall who, along with C.K. Young,
had been on the originul Clyde Cruising Club Committee in 1909. He preduced

Lhe sketch that gruced the front of the journal for meny years, drew the incet
chart for the Sailing Directions and designed the Club Burgee bul his greatest
monument, even acknowledged by the presy at the time of his death, was
undoubtedly Burdowie and it iws fitting that the premier Trophy ot Burdowie =
the Points Cup wus, in fact, presented Ly him, tHowever, perheps the most apt
comment on Bardowie comes from the 1939 Journuli-

"Hos the Bardowie project Justified its existence? Undoubtedly it hma, but let
fucts answer for themselves. The personnel of the Section has been growing
snd changing each yesr, and the increase in the membership of the parent ﬁody
15 largely traceable to the scheme. Lest, however, it should be said that dry
land sailors are being bred, it is of some interest to know thul from a
conservative estimate made recently, it was found that at least rifty former
Bardowie youngsters had become active cruising members of the Club, while
several of them are yucht ownera. Other Clubs have benefited slso, but
perhaps the psychelogicnl effect of the scheme has been greutest of all for
its impetus to yachting on the Clyde, at a period when few young luds
uppesred to be interested in the sport, is incalculable.

The dinghies themselves are in good condition, and the Club property has been
well maintained, thanks largely to the influence of the Captain, Mr. Mclntyre,
who i8 in large measure respensible for the success attained by the Section."

Other prophetic worde came later from the Commodore, spesking at the Annual
Dinner Lance when he described Burdowie as bringing forward young mun who,
with their elders, would be ready if called upon to save the nution. In fact,
many Bardowie members did go to war and several did not return.

THY  WAR  YEAKS

When War broke out an extension to the Clubhouse waa being planned, since
accommodation was tight, even with Lhe stone Boathouse which hud been roofed
and floored by a team spurred on by J. Mclntyre in 1935, snd which naw
provided welcome additional spuce. “Yheue plans were naturully dropped and it
would have bLeen easy to have laid up the boats temporarily and stopped uailing.

licwever, Bardowie had gained & priceless asset in Jimmy McIntyre as Captain,
0ld Jimmy McIntyre, already 70 when he became Captain, took over and ruled

Bardowie. Under his leadership Bardowie stayed apen throughout the War snd,
despite the fact that serving members paid no subscription and the ordinary

subsgeription was reduced from £1,70,0 to £1, the Dinghy Section accounte
continued 1o show a surplus unlil in Mareh 1941 the Socretary wss inatructed to
return the yuurentees Lo Lhe guarantors, ve Durdowie wus now sclif-suflicient.
Hot only did Bardowic stay open but it was open during the day, since Mr.
Melnbyre, without the benefit of private transport, travelled from Paisley each
day and could be at Lardowle ws early as 10 s.m. 1f no-ane elue wanted to go
sulling he would po himsell, often donning a long oilskin and seabootls if
necessary on wet duys - the wewring of a lifejucket does not appear to have
arisen. Of course the question of others not wanting to go suiling whilé

J. McInlyre was Captain did not often arise. There was no lounging around a
Clubhouse wondering whether to go sailing - if you cume to Bardowiu, you sailed
or worked. Il wus J, McTntyre who got rid of the Waterman and nurtured the
iden that Bordowle members would do wll thelr own work,

During the War Bardowie fulfilled many roles for ite members. Organised Points
Racing wds impossible since no young men could be present eight weeks in a row.
However, racing did take place when serving men came home on leave and went out
Le the Loch for a well-carned bresk, There they could have a s3ail und enjoy
tiie compuny ol the younpstoers, who were out wimost every doy following "Skipper
Melntyre sround and doing odd jobs. To thuese youngolers, too, Bardowie served

"

o purpose, bl dunmer holidoyo wers impossible.  Mven during the winter thoy
would continue to como out and work on the boats lying upside down on truvalles
outside. 1 it rained they aimply got wnder the boat and worked vn the insidual

There wera, of course, reatrictions during the War and the principal one at
nrdowlie wng in the form of 1% - 20 ft. long logs moored oll over the lLoch to
dissuande possible vnemy scaplane lending. Their effect on seaplones wes never
tusted but they werws extremely inconvenient to sailors until pradunlly the
moorings, which were rather weak, mysteriously %ept parting leaving the logs
to drift ashore out ol hurm's way. However, before this happensd st least

one member home on leave romembers being well beaten in a race with the
Cuvtuin, since he knew beiter the way throuph the logs. The larpe raft which

la sL1Y1 wl the Loch appeared arcund thlas time, broupht out by an H.ONL squad
on u Snturduy afternoon, to becemo Bardowle'as first, Lhough unsuccesnful,
sitempt vt o flenling jotiy. “The Navy and Huserves uged Hardowie and it is

estimated Lhet around 150 INVR Gfficers received truining there from tiwe to
Lime.

Despite the War restrictions the boats' decks were re-canvassed in 1940 and two
rowing dinghies were purchased in 1944, Life had continued as normelly as
possible throughout the War period, due almost entirely to the efforts of

Mr. Melnlyre, who considercd thut it was his part of the War effort to ensure
that DBurdowiv wug in good heart when suiling and recing could recume after
hostilities ended. e huad the knack of aseeking out workers who could tackle
any job around Bardowie, with the minimum of tools and materials and many was
the job Lthot ecurned the Skipper's asccolade of " damn good Job and choap”.

In lact at the vurent Club A.G.M. in March 1943 the Hear Commedore paid
tribute Lo his "For hiu continuing enthusiastie work al Bardowie, by which he
vug kKeeping in being the only Club activity possible during the present
conditionu®.

POST-WAR  EXPANSTION

Despite the considerable efforts during the War when at least six beats,

though not the original six, were re-planked they were thirteen years old by
the end of 1945 and it wans clear they could go on no lonper. llowever, the

Club itself wun in good heart, justifying the lemse of the Loch being renewed
in 1945 for another 5 yeusrs at £30 per annum, while by 1948 membership had to



be restricted for the first time. The decision was made to replace the fleet

and Leslie Parrott drew up plans for both a clinker built boat and, at the

request of Mr. McIntyre, a chine boat, J. Adam was again approached but eould

not give a price since thers was in force a poat-War Order prohibiting the

building of new boats. As a Btop-gap measure new Saila were boupht npd the

old fleet soldiered on. LS

At the same time financial stringency was showing in other ways ns the Parent
Club decided, due to ever-increasing costs to sell the Club Yacht "Rosemary",
which for at least 20 years had been available for charter to Club Mombers -and
which had provided the first taste of deep water sailing for many Rardowie
members.

Deapite all the difficulties of finance and restrictive orders, the question of
new dinghies eventually could not he left any longnr and Bardowie, having flown
the C.C.C. burgee all through the War, was not pgoine to be banten now, A new
desipgn was prepared by A. Mylne, whoaa father had retired ns Commodore in 1946,
and this desipn was donated to the Club by Mr. G. Seligman. Silvera ynrd at
Korneath offered to build one boat free of charge ns a trial and this was
tested by the Committee at the Gareloch on 19 January 1948. The hoat wes a
augcras and after obtaining a permit from the Admiralty 9 were ordered at a
cost of 4130 each, with galls nt £9 from the Greenock Yail & Tent Co. Thene
boats, which came inte service in 1948, were 13 ft. overall, 12 ft, in the
water-line and had a beam of 4'9" with & draught of 72" and 3 ft. with the
plate down. They were conventional, decked hard chine boats but lighter and
mich livelier than the old hoats. Web framing was again used with varnished
mahogany planking and one thwart was provided for the helmsman with no side
benches or thwart for the crew. Sails were, of courge, again cofton and
although the boats started life with the mainsheet led to a transem horse,

this was soon changed to a centre mainsheet arrangement. At that time a amall
but significant development in sailing was noted at Bardowie, with the nae of
the new resin glue to secure the necessary mainsheet lead to the aft end of the
centreboard case. Seven of the old boats were sold and the proceeds put to the
purchase of the new boats. Four of these boats were donnted by Col. Spencer, C
the retiring Commodore; R.J. Dunlop, the new Commodore; an anonymous member

and the Royal College of Science and Technology. Of the remainder, one came
from the sale of the previous fleet, one from Dinghy Section nurplus, one

from ¢cnpital and twe from surplus Club income.

The old guard had some misgivinga about the new boats but the youngsters were
much more enthusiastic, and nt lenst one is known to have exproancd doubt na

Lo whether Lhe older membera had the agility to sail the Lontas to Lhelr beat
ndvantage! To some extent the old guard won and in 179 new bigeer nnd

heavier centreboards were fitted to improve stability. However, the old pusrd
were not 60 bad at seiling and at Points Racing members like Jan Tyall, Alfred
Mylne, Alec and llamish Lawrence, Willie Rowan and Bill Cnrey were showing the
young tearawavs how to sall. It wns during this period that one of ‘the (not
50) old gunrd showed them all the wny home, nnd in 1946 nnd k& Sheena Sandeman
(now Reid) becnme the only girl ever to win the Points Racing finnl.

While 1948 was the first seamon of the new boats it wns nlso the lnat semson
of Mr. McIntyre's Captaincy. In commenting on the great debt of gratitude
that the Club owed him it wns noted that one way in which he would be miased
wia that afternoon sailing, which had been made ponsible by Mr. Mclntyre,
would now have to be restricted to the woekenda only. Jaek Harrin took over
as Captain nnd the Club continued to thrive, drawing in up to 180 membors who
Points Racod every night of the week. The pout of Hnrdowie lecretary hnd

L

lupsed when StanloyMscKechnie took over the Main Club Becretaryship in 1039

and Jimmy McIntyre continued to run affairs s#ingle=honded. [lowaver,
eventually in the Yate 1940's the puriats in the Club demanded proper minutes
of mentings and Viector Dnre took over as Secrotary in 1948, A pont he was to
held for 18 yenrs,

Additional berthing mpace wns provided by an L-mhaped extension to the fetty
in 1949, HNowever, bent storape during the winter continued to be a rrohlem
and eventually in 1950 the present bontshed wng built, thus avoiding the
trouble and expense of atornpge nt premises in Glaspow, which had been ndepted
for the new honis in preference to lying nnder tarpvauline ns with the old
borts. A year Inter the firat Paint Shed woas built frem accond-hand wood and
althongh the present structure bears little resemblance to the original, it is
At lenst on the anme aite,

Late in 19%1 ¢ame one of the moast important events in the Club'a history. The
Loch, which hitherto had been lensod, wan mt up for anle with nome of Lhe
surrouniting Innd.  The main Club Sacretnry, John Dobie, whn hnd Lnlen over
"temporarily™ from Stanley MncKeghnin in 1930, renlined the inportance of thia
dovelopment. and whan 1 wnn mnde krown Lhat n anick, firm offer would mecure
the Lech, n genernl commitiee meeting on S0th November 1951 npeedily resolved
to purchase the Loch for £1,000, A Specinl fieneral Meeling of the Club was
enlled eon 7th Janunry 1952 to rutify the Committee's decinion and by the time
of the meeling which, of courne, ngreed unanimoualy with the CommitLas, nome
£300 had slready been contributed to the cost. By the time the 14952 Journnl
wns publiched £705 had heen rained, which aurely indicated the importsance
which the members attached to Hardowie. Thus, some 19 years after the
inception of the Section, this wns the best tangible eviience Lhat Bardowie
wna here te ntay - and the Dinghy Section nubseription wan Atil) only £1.10.0
for seniors and cadets., The balance of Lhe piurchase price of the Loch was
incidentally met from part of a lepacy to the Club of £5%00 from the late
Commodore Col, Speneer, thus the purchase left Club reseryes untouched,

Having purchased the loch it was time to keep looking ahead. The Club was
going from strength to strength and there were around 200 membors, with a
waiting 1ist in forece al the atart of cach season. Accommodation wnas, however,
aparse conaisting of the original Clubhouse which was ahout the airze of Lhe
preacnt Sailohed, snd the stone bonthouse which had been floored and sgain
re=roafad, Chanping fneilities, which conatinted af an nren In Lhe honthonne
behind a tarpouling demanded a fair degree of trust from the opponite aexes
if any modeaty wnn Lo be maintained, and Loilet facilities ntill conaimted

of nn Elsnn Chemical Toilet, which wna periodieally emptied hy the younrent
eddel nvailnble far, or not sn fur na the cnae may he, up the Loch!  Chenging
and toilet Focililiea were needed and if meney permitiod, no nlac wis A
Clubroom. - .

After holding a Coronation Hepntta in 1953, the second in Bardowie's history,
the next major item war the Clubhouae. A building 16 ft. x P00 fe, containing
male and femnle chonping rooma with teilet fneilities to n sentic Lank, wsn
connldered eonentiol and it owan apreed that thin should be funded from Lhe
Club reservon.  An extendton M1 (L, x 20 Chey incorporating a kilchen nnd
Clubraom wns desirable and althoupth no direct appeal won mude lar Minda Yor
this section, since the loch purchnse appenl had been made only a few years
earlior, Lhere wure many donations as well nn fund reiaing nckivities by
Bardowio Mowbers.  The Firat phose conting £1,170 wos opened nt the 1994

Hegnt b by the Commedaore’ s wife, Mes. John MeKenn, whene suan N1 , n Dnrdowin

member nlo the Lime, is now himael Coammodore,  Aftor gome disennnion L wha
decided Lo, pe nhend and build the alie)l ol the kitchen amt Clubroom early in
10h 0 Tenying the Tinting amt Findahings Lo be completed by Cluhy Membery

dnring the eourse af the yenr, Nob content with completing the Clubliouse,



luter that year the members also built (from & Kit) a Yachting World Pram
Dinghy which continued to serve Bardowie for 17 yenrs,

All this expansion of course added to the responaibilities of running Bardowie
und #s Juck Harris retired and i1l Carey becwne Captain in 1955 the Commitlee
were discussing such weighty matters ao the setting up of & reserve fund for
bout replucement. In 1955 Lhe Burdowie subscription rose from £1.10.0 to L2,
Lhe first inerease since the Club opened in 1933, However, dardowie had many
friends and despite the Pureat Club Membership of only about V30 to Bardowie's
200, the Leeretury, John Lobie, writing in Lho 19%4 Journal estimated thab at
least 1,000 yachtswen on the Clyde und elsewhers, owed theip training to
Bardowie and when money wus required they never forgot the Club.

Before long there were compluints about the way members Kept the now Club-
house und changing rooms. However, at least it was a heulthy sign {hut the
Club was being used. At woekends no-one went home in the evening. The bouts
were brought to the jetty about five o'clock, by which Lime the youngest cadet
around hud been despatched to the farm at the tep of the roud with o cun for
milk. Everyone hud sundwiches and would eat them on the jetty or at long
tables in the Clubhouse, After tea, suiling continued although by Lhe evening
it wus less likely then that boats would huve to come in for crew changes, as
wad necessury during the busier afterncon when sailing was restricted to an
hour at a time. Sailing always had ta stop in time to catch the last bus te
Glasgow since although many cycled to the Club, few came by cur. However,
there was always time to udd o fTew cryptic comments in the Log Hook in a
continuing story of the fictitious characters who allegudly roamed the lLoch.
Points Racing wus fully subseribed, to the sxtent of seven bocats raciung on
five nights of the week, and from being the inexperienced youngsters of the
late 40's, the names of Bill Carlsw, Konnie Sharp, Norrie Macdonald and "Tieh"
Bell (who luster built u Nutional 1% and sailed in the Prince of Wnles Cup)
were from 1949 on, firmly engraved on the Lyall Troephy along with othera,
slthough it must be added that Willie Weir wus surely the most consistent
runner=up. It becume generully understood that these people were unbeutable,
80 when a young upsturt won the first race of the 1962 final it was dismissed
as a fluke. lowever, he also won the next three ruces and Wijilie Tucker had
arrived with a new generubion Lo Lreas the now older generation's domination
of the l'vinls Trophy. The social side was not forgotten either and took the
form of dances during the winter, first in the Plaza and then in the Sultire
Roows to the music of u borrowed record player - wus Bardowie first with
discos?

Huving got the Clubhouse behind them the members turned their attention to the
areg of ground in front of the building. Not nuch space was now avuiluble
since the shore followed the general line of the Loch only a few feet in front
of the Clubhouse, so in 1956 Lhe infill of the area begun whut was certainly
to be'Bardowie's longest project, culminating in the completion of the pregent
hard in 196%.

THE THIMD WOODEN FLEET

While the land reclamation went on the boats were getting older and some very
major repairs were undertaken by the members. In the late fifties
consideration wus again being given to a new fl.et. However, conditions were
different and dinghy sailing was becoming more of a spert in its own right,
rather than a prelude to deep water sailing. For this reeson there were now
several stundurd cluss dinghies on the market and also on the horigzon wus a
completely new concept in boat construction - fibreglasa. Thisa time the
search for & bout went on for years until class boats were narrowed down to a
Mayfly, or & beefed-up Enterprise to stsnd Bardowie treatment, and these were

considered nlong with nnothur specially evolved one design. Quotatlona were
wvited for the bonty in fibregluss us well as woed. lowever, fibruegluss turned
aut Lo by ut least 300 move sxpensive than the eguivalent woodoen bout which,
even allowing for reduced msintunance, was not considered ressonable. Eventuslly
at the end of 1958, G.L. Watson, who had prepured drawings to 4 Club design by
Archiiv Scotl, were uwuked to invite tenders for the one design. The lowest of
Lhese wis from Hugh Mclesn at Greenock, who offerad Lo build the bouta for £195,
with saily Feom W.N, Loiteh ut 218 per boat.

Agnin ) bouts wers built, euch 12'6" long by 5'9" beam ond moulded depth 1'Q"
wilh @ Biadl wres of S0 ag.lt.  "They were puainted blue on the Lopsides and white
bulow Lhe walerline with stone coloured decks and inside, except for thwarts,
conming, Kinpplunk, ete. which were varnished. Delivery took pluce in stages
during 1199 which wag Lhe Perent Club's Jubilee year, and becaute the lnst boat
was not delivered until the Heputta, lointy Racing was restrictod in that year
only Lo u four-week seriva in Aupust and September, Despite Leing s wooden one
design the new boots displayed several advences in sailing dinghy development.
They were, of course, deliburntely heavy by any standurds but this of course
wis Lo sland up to Bardowie treatment, and also since like both their
predecessors they hid Lo lle to mooringa, as hauling out of Lhe water was not
conniderud.  However, they were built of rot-proof plywood with mipimum framing
and had 2 metal maast, though still a wooden boom with truck lor slides, The
salls were still colton with reefing pointe. The must was now deck stepped on
a juck with single shrouwds snd Corestay a pre-set length. UGone were rigping
seruws with all the interminuble adjuutment as boats Wure tuned bul in came the
wast Juck, with essentiol and ewsily lost tommy bar for udlustments, and of
course the jucks themselves were casily leat if a mast broke or went over the
vide. Musts did unfortunately break now und then and wure also vrone to
buekling until Lhe spreader arrangement wos finally modified. Gone alsc were
the old tin cuns for Lucyuncy and in cume modern, inflatable and tuc-eusily
punctured buoyancy bugs. No kicking strups or tiller extensions were provided
inilially sl were only fitted in the following yeur. %oe struaps, unother new
innovution, were Pitted after the bouts hud been delivered and tested, wund
altheugh the crew still lud ne Jam elests, a forwurd thwart and side benches
were now provided and gave some comfort. These boals were aguin paid for
without recourse to the Club funds. Two were donuted by members and one came
from the Hoyal College of Science and Technology. The remainder of the coast
was mude up from dorations, the sale of the old flest and accumuluted Dinghy
Section reserves, thus requiring no contributions from the Parent Club.

The members soon adjusted to the new boats, which were aguin faster and
livelier than the previous fleet. They planed readily and cuapsized easily,
often luraing turtle and putting the mast in the mud. One problem which had
ulso been present in the first fleet of boats waa the short length of the
rudders. "he blede, which did not 1lift, come almost out of the water when
the bout heeled and of course tho boat then luffed up out of control. During
1961 an experimentsl aluminium rudder blade was tested but this unfortunately
bent, so it wan not until 1962 that new longer solid mehogany lifting rudder
blades waro provided.  Fuarly teothing troubles could not, however, dotract
from the success of Lhese bouts which were well built to a pood desipgn, nnd
which could provide exciting sailing in s blow while having the necessary
stability for Burdowle's most important role of teaching.

Such wus the presaure on membership (there wera 220 members By 1562) that
members had to puss the test within 2 yearsa or face the posaibility of being
asked to resign. Bnthusissm was stil) high and bout skippers vied with sach
other to muke their bout fastest and best fitted out. kven during the winter
the Club wns well used, with teble tennis set up in the Clubroom and an old
wind-up prumophene with a stock of sbout 3 records providing the entertain-
ment, ol oof course when it was really cold skating took over and on sovaral



occasions an ice yacht was built. Deapite these attractions, fitting out with
the help of paraffin heaters {for the benefit of drying paint - not comfort)
wag well advanced most years, ond in fact 1960 saw the skippers demanding the
Club open early as they were ready with the boats. Later in that year two
Regattas were held, the additional one which had many novelty races, being held
in July to celebrate the Parsnt Club'as Jubilee. The social scene had by now
switched from Plaza Nighte to a dance at the beginning and end of the scaseon
in the Saltire Rooms to the music of a portable record player whiech the Club
hnd bought. Dances were alse held at the Clubhouae and film shows and
lectures were arranged during the winter. Although there wns tnlk of electric
pawer there was still no money for this and Tilley lamps remained the order of
the day. When a mains record Player or film projector was used in the Club-
house, a cable was led from a nexrby house acroes the fielde via many damp and
flashing connections to the Clubhouse.

Points Racing was keenly contested and although Bill Carlaw won back the
Trophy in 1963 it was again won for the new generation by Jock Fleming in 1964,
The trio of Sharp, Carlaw and Macdonald kept the Trophy for the reat of the
Sixties, until that generaticn’'s domination of the Points Racinrg was ended in
1970. However, it will be gome time before anyone beats Bill Carlaw's eight
winn, spread over a period of 18 years.

While the coming and going of fleets of aailing Dinghies gives great intereat,
the passage of Lhe rowing dinghies as they go from ferrying duties down to
workboats is hardly noticed. The first rowing dinghies wers, of course,
clinker built and it is interesting to see that the latest additian in 1979,
although fibreglass, has also a clinker hull. In between there have been many
boats;  an iron dinghy of the 40's, the red dinghy of the 50's and even, as
workboat only, a ship's lifeboat which was bought in 1971 for £10 and
immediately had its copper bucyancy tanks removed and sold for £12¢ Barly in
the 60'a, when again & rowing dinghy wae needed, it was decided that this
should be in fibreplans as a proving beat for the next fleet, aince it waa
recognised even then that these boats would be built in fibreglass. This boat
wng bought in 1961 and has proved the value of fibreglass by surviving to the
present day. However, it is still not the longeat-surviving boat at Bardowie,
This honour poes to one of the original dinghies, which itaelf was finally
superseded as a workboat when the fibreglass boat took over the main Terrying
duties from an old clinker built Smiths Dinghy, which was then put to work
duties. "No. 10", as the original dinghy was affectionntely called, was finally
burned on the jetty after a Regatta in the early 60's, ang fittingly coneigned
to the deep somewhere in the Loch. The wooden clinker built dinghy which went
to work duties had earlier been & fine example of Pardowie self-help, when in
1661 it was completely reframed under the guidance of the Captnin, 9ill Uarey,
with the help of a home made steaming box. During the 60's there was ona
rowing boat which was definitely not for ferrying duties. This was a proper
rowing skiff with eight oars, and at 20 ft, long was ensily the largeat hoat
ever on the Loch. Unfortunately, there was only one. llowever, rnces agninat
the clock were frequently held round Middle Deep. There have been varioun
canoea from time to time at the Loch, but ome particular favourite was n proa
which, with its extra stability from the outripger proved a lormidable wenpon
in water fights in the late 50's and early 60's'

Another relic of original Bardowie also disappenred in the 6U'a. The original
Clubhouse which by now had been reduced to the mtatus of sailshed nnd stora,
was in a poor state and had to be replaced. It is intercating, though, that
although there wus now a smart new Clubhouse, the original huilding at the end
of the jetty was still the focus of attention and the peint from which the
Steward worked. Eventually, however, in 1963 it was demolished and n new ashed
wasg erected in 1904, This new shed, while intensely practical now teinz on a
concrete base with an asbestos roof, had none of the character of the nld

building with its doubtful flooring and a roof substantial enough to allow sun-
bathing or provide a platform from which to have a cuntrollingllgfluence on
wntﬂr-?ights! It ic worth mentioning here thab the last of originnal B?rdowie
Tinally dinnpponred in the late 60's, when the jetty wns destroyed py~1ca driven
down the loch by HMurricane Low Q on 15 January 1968, The only remalining
remnants of the original construction are now the piles under the present deck
in front of the sail ghed.

However, Bardewle wns not all desatruction in the 60's and in 1964 the fetty
project was completed when the hard, ag it really is, wes finally ?rought into
comuisaion. This hud been started in 1956 and for years had occupied all the
members, though principally Hamish Thompson, Norrie Macdonald, Willie WE%r and
llemry Macdonald in filling in the area in front of Lhe Clubhouse by hauling
stone [rom Aall over the Loch by ingenious methods, including tying a raft to the
back of a car. A larpe mource of {ill was from the demolition of the old stone
hont house, which by the mid-Fifties won superseded by the new facilities
nvnilable. Towever, mont of Lhe material came from tha demelition of Duke
Streel 3nil.  YNventually in the winter of 1060/61 progreas wna far encugh
advanced on the jetty to nllow the face of the quay to be built. Steel beams
were driven as piles mnd heing opportunists the team took advantage of the ice
on the Loch an a plle driving platform. The inevitahle happened n?d as the
fourth pile was being driven the ice broke, landing the whole working party in
the water! Yrogress continued using a scaffolding platform and then rnilwey
aleepers were ingerted betwnen the piles, the whole fnce Lied back to the

shore and infilled with carefully placed stone blocks. Fendering was hung on
the front, concrete placed nll round the edge, nnd the quay was open for use
during 1904 rroviding welcome ndditional berthing apnace.

In 1961 long tables and benches ir the Clubhouse were replaced with basket chairs
and coffee tables. Tlowever, a major advance took place in 1966, the year after
Colin White, a Committes member of pre-War days, took over from Bill Carey as
Coptain when, after many years of dimcusaion, electricity wnm finnlly provided

in the Clubhoune and Boatshed. This wns inatalled by # tesm led by lenry
Maedonald and Willie Welr, and cost around £70 with o connection charge of
£32.10,0.  On 11th Oclober 1966 the Tilley lamps were put away for the last time
as powsr came on. The same year, 19066, alao snw expencion at the Car Park. Up
until then the Car Park consisted of little more than na loy-by. However,
changing trends meant that far more members were travelling to the Club by car
and since the Car Park was hopelessly inadequately sized, it wns cextended to

its present size and fenced off. The loss of the original Jetty in January 1968
left n shortnge of herthing npace deapite the new hard. Also, it becnme apparent
that in certaln winds the hard was quite exposed. An attempt wns made to build

n Jotly-cumebrealtwnter ab the went end of the quay, and rlthough this failed in
the deep water and soft mud, it fired the imagination of Bertle Compbell who

then aet nhout producing a flonting jetty. Thia wam firat inatalled in 1970 and
win 80 aucceastul that it was extended in 1970, Tt was only removed from ita
original porition in 191 when the atnging In front of the mail =ted was reatorsd
nnd o detty ntarled in the position of the sne denroyed in 1968, with the
flonting aection providing Lthe outer end.

In 1964 another stage in the development of sailing was marked nt Hardowie when
the bonte were equipred with snila from Jeckells in the new material, terylense,
The originnl jibs had bean found Lo be too small, fa using a moedel of o dinghy,
A lnvger jib of 50 sq.ft. wan deaigned incrensing the sail area Lo 1720 EI- T
and much improving the performance of the bonts. The introduction of terylene
removed one of the big bughenrs of sniling - that of hanging up wet .s8ils to

dry. Cotton an{ls eondd never be pul away wet or Lhey wonld rot.  They were
nlwnys g up in Che boatshed and althouph Lhe pregencn of jib sheets and
ounthauls midle it miueh easieor to hang them by the leach - woe betide anyone
who did mo aince unless hng by the luff they went quickly -nd hod!y ont of

shiape.



During 1962/63 a greup of members, led by Jock Fleming, ralsed money and

produced a film of the Club's activities over the yaar, Although they did not

record the effects of Hurricane Debbie in 1962, which left boata capaized mt
moorings and a tree through the Clubhouse roof, or the repaira to the rotted
Clubhouse floor, invelving spreading ash and tar in the foundationa, they did
record one of the biggest freeze-ups of the Loch in 1963, when cars were
racing course 1 and a motor-bike roared up the Loch at 65 mph on 1h ins of ice.

The film made in 62/63 alao showed the members sailing without 1ifejnckets.
Unthinkable now but commonplace until 1963. Until then the queation of 1lfe-
Jackets had been left to the steward's discretion, nnd it was very seldom made
compulsory to wear the Cluh's heavy Board of Trade Lifejackets, However, in
1963 the I'arent Club received a letter commenting on the dangers of sailing
without lifejackets and the Parent Committee pressed Bardowie on the subject.
The Bardowie Committee resisted making lifejacketa compulsory as they felt
this was best left to the stewards who had an intimate knowledge of the Loch.
Only reluctantly, after noting that cther Dinghy Clube on the open sea left
the matter to the Officer of the Day's discretion, did they agree in 196N to
enforce the wearing of lifejackets at all times. However, it is one ruler
which has remained atrictly enforced at Bardowie, and when one considers that
nt the time of its inception dinghy sailors wore much heavier clothing than
todey's wet suits require, it is perhaps just as well.

The ability to refer to other dinghy sailing clube in the discussion over life-
jackets wag a small but significant feature. In 1933 Bardowie was almosat
unique and was only outdated to any extent by the Clyde Canoe Club, which was
founded towards the end of the last ¢entury, and Bardowie still does hold the
distinctior of being the only Club in the country where all the boats are Club-
owned. The Club had pioneered one design dinghies with the firat fleeta which
were custom built boats because there really was no aliernntive. Ny the time
the third fleet was built dinghy sailing hnd developed sufficlently for off

the shelf boats to be available, though none were considered suitable for
Bardowie. It was during the Sixties that dinghy sailing pot going to the
extent that by the time the third fleet of wooder boats was getting a bit long
in the tooth around 1967/68, there was a wealth of standard clnaa dinghies

to choose from though even then not all in fibreglassa. :

In the winter of 1967/68 major maintensnce involving new bottoms in two of the
boats was carried out by the members and it was obvioua that yet again new
boats would have to be considered. Unfortunately, at the same time, despite
the «irives for membership, which was now well below 200, the days of wniting
lists and Points Racing every evening were gone and the Bardowie and Parent
Club Committees took A serious view of Bardowie's future. A small sub-
committee was set up under the Captain, Colin White, not only to look for a
suitable new boat but alao to ses if Pardowie was on the right liresa. The
Committee concluded that the Dinghy Section should nob meve from ite pregent
site to Milngnavie reservoir as had been conaidered, Membrra' bhontae should
not be allowed on the Loch and else that a National Class dinghy in fibre-
Flass should be bought. Several clasaes were examined but the clenr lender
after trials at Stirling Univeraity and at Bardowie wns the Lark, Thins wna
a comparatively new class but one which wag raced by several University
Sailing Clubs, and thus offered the possibility of goed inter-club races.

THE LARKS AND OTikR BOATS OF THE 70's

The first Larks appeared at Bardowie in 1969 about the aame time a8 man
landed on the moon, and the difference between them nnd any previous hoats
was like tomparing a space craft with a biplane. The Lark was n round

bilged fihreplaas racing dinghy which wns totally uncompriaing to beginners.
There waz no question of it lyinpy ot mooringa as it wns too unatable even to
let the crew go onte the foredeck to rig the Jib., This led to the building

of a new, more sheltered, lnaunching slip at the east end of the Jetty and the
construction of a high fence rcund the Club for security, after the idea of a
dinghy park on lLeslie Isle had been rejected. It went without saying that
the Lari cnprized readily, hut it did have built-in buoynncy tanks which
allowed it to be righted cacily, and self-baillers and tranaom flapa which
allowerd it Lo be sailed dry aftaer A capsire, giving a completely new dimension
to Bardowie sailing.

At 1373" long x 5'6" heam and with n sail area of 105 Bq.ft. the Larka were
acturlly lonper nnd benmier than the wooden boats and had leas gail area.
llowever, their all up woipght wns much lens at 205 lbs. and they rasily ocut-
sailed their predecessors., No experimenting was needed with this fleet

which had heen incrensed to ten boats and which was built by John Baker, with
nniln by Rocksll. TFive of the bontn were deliveral In Seplember 1969, with
the remadnder in time for the opening in 1970. The bontno were Ehorowghly
modern with alumininm spars, jid halyard on a high=field lever and dreum
tensioned kicking straps, though these were later chinged to simpler tackle
versions.  An mentioned nbove there wns alao built-in buoysncy, aelf-baller
and Lrannom flana, neone of whilch had been arnn at Bardowin Lefore, Qut,
hewever, went Lhe aimple sail numbera 1-9 in favour of regulation numbers 399-
Lof and ont almo, to aome extenl, went the effect of the akipper whosne degree
of enre and nttention could ansily be acen on n weoden bont. The grentest
Tomn, however, wnun ponaibly Lhe little things that tanght members ultimately
how to howdle larger bonls, like picking up and lenving moorings and tying
down reefs — but perhaps nrdewie wasn't training people for hiprer bonts any
mare.

Not only were the hoats very different, so aleso weas the methed of Tinnncing the
flaet. ALt n comb of £430 anch the days of donations of hents were over but the
dnys of igvernment grants had arrived. As long as the benks provided additionnal
rew faeilities a 507 grant could be obtained from the Scattish !perts Uouncil.
This mnited the Cluh perlectly as it was clenr that the old haats wenl? be
needed for training, nnd arven were kept in comminaion for meveral yenra. The
remainder of Lhe cont wnn met from fund raiming netivities which were arranged
by the team of Douglas Murrny, Jock Fleming and Jehn Carmichnel. “Yhese had
started ns long npo an 196) when Bardowie held a Tombola at the Club's Annual
Dinner llance, and in 1965 a collection nt the A.G.M. raised almost £100. AL
the old frosvenor Reataurant that yenr Lark No. 01 was pub into the ballroom
fully ripymed, to encourspre donalions to a raffle. The bont Just went up the
stairs, close pasl a larre mirrer, but the mast had to be hoisted through a
window! lowever, the biggest and most complicated fund raising event wos a
2h-hour rage wilh o competition te puess how far Lhe winning boal would travel.
Thin wans held on 20/21 June 1971 and the boats were ench rigged wilh mwomant-
head Light for Lhe occanion and marka were ninoo 1it, A morques wan erected

at the Club and for the only time A temporary licrnce was given. Hardowie had
noenrnival almonphere and the resalt of 20 howra' raciug won ot o Lhoe
bnlance right up to the finioh, when ledensburgh Sailing Club won, having
travelled a distance Y5 milen 96 yards 1 foot % inches {or so the Surveyors
alleged). The second tenm was Monitlands 121 minutes later with Hardowie only
35 meceonds behind.  Throughout the entire 24 houra hot feod was rynilnble,

to the conmiderable credit of the girlo of the Tena Committee. This wns nlao
probably their bipgest—ever effort, tnt from the very firat opening dnay
suaconnive Tea Uommitbees have provided the moat mspnificent ¢alering nt
Bardowie open days, eogattng snd partienlarly Lhe Laird Trophy. As Always at
Bardowio the work in done by willing volunteera although the minutes of the
Genarnl Meoting of April 12 do mcord that Mra. Carny “wns nominated and
unanimously etected without beinpg nllowed bto npensk"!



Bardowie entered the Seventies with more boats than ever before. Sailing and
the teaching of the art wus more widespreud and Hardowie, which had been
providing the bosats and teuching its members for 40 yeurs, wus beginning to
find competition from Local Authorities snd sailing schools. Burdowie,
however, had no need to fear this competition since it could provide far
cheaper sailing than any Local Authority establishment, and could teach its
members in the congenial utmosphere of a Club and without the nucessary
“erumming" of & sailing school. Nevertheless, il wus necessary to convince
the ocutsider by allowing members to show they had reached a nationully
recognised stundard. The new Cuptain, Jock Fleming, who took ever from Colin
White in 1971, recognised this and in 1972 a training course was held ut the
Club by the R.Y.A. nutional coach, Bob Bond. Sufficient Bardowie members
were trained to R.Y.A, Instructor Standurd to allow the Club to be recognised
as an R.Y.A. teaching establishment and to issue R.Y.A. Baybout Certificutes.
This, of course, did net affect the Club's own test which was still maintained.

The Bardowie Test dutes buck to 1933 when after several "cupsizals' us they
wore then called, it was recognined that some sort of proficiency had to be
established before members could be ullowed to tuke out & bout. The test
quickly evolved intc sections on knots, racing rules and scamanship, with the
first two to be pussed before Lhe seamanship. In early days Membera were
issued with & blue membership card and were only allowed to sail os crew until
they pussed the seamanship test, allowing them a red memberahip curd and the
privilege of taking out and racing a boat ag skipper. The colour curd system
ended in the 60's and s6 also did the signing of time cards to verify time
spent at the helm before attempting the seamanship teat, olthough time cards
did re-appear for a few yeurs in Lhe 70's. 'The test, however, never stopped
and the feature of two classes of bouts in Lhe 70's allowed some relaxation

in the requirement to pass racing rules before seamanship tor non-lark suilors.
Uowever, the knols test remsined and in fact when it was once reviewed, since
1t wus thought too complicated, one knot wus dropped and two added! Thy Test
is un integral purt of Bardowie and us well as maintaining a high standard end
ensuring that bosats are competently sailed, it provides an objective for the
novice to attain. Training, too, has ulways buen fundamuntal te the Bardowie
concept and over the years many formul training schemes huve been epergted on
specific nighte of the weck from Bill Caruy's knota classes on Tuesdays to

Dod Whyte's team rucing practice on Sundsy evenings. lowever, the cornerstone
of the whole teaching system remains the continuous informal training that
every member is expected to give every novice.

Despite the ability to offer H.Y.A. Certificates the decline in membership waa
coutinuing and, sgain on the instigation of the Captain, in 1972 & small but
subtle change took place at the beginning of the season with the changing of
Opening Day to an Open Day. This was advertised in the press, leafleis were
distributed and the Club was open to the public. The objective for once wus
not to make money but to get membera and in this aim the event was a huge
success. On several occasions in breezy conditions the Club has witnessed
unxious parents watching their offspring returning from an inadvertent capsize
souking and freezing, und with ne change of clothes, but despuerute to aign a
membership application form!

The 70's were punctuated by the appearance and disappearance of various boats
with the only constant feature being the Larks, Largely due to ths Larks,
reacue facilities, which had hitherto consisted of the large dinghy of the
time and & pair of oars, were improved in the early 70's by the addition of
an outboard motor. However, this offercd a poor comparison with other ¢lubs
and eventually, again assisted by a grant, a 13 ft. dory with 20 h.p. engine
wag purchused in 1973. This bout could reach the far end of the Loch within
a minute and although it had obvious drawbacks in cost and engine maintenance,
it certainly allayed any doubts there may have been over Bardowie's safety

standards.

By 1973 the wooden boats hud become too much of a handful to maintain and they
wure sold Lo Skye Suilling Club. Much us these boats were maliyned in comparison
Lo the Tivelier Larks, Lhey had served the Club well over 14 years. So well, in
foct, thut it was recogrined that while the luarks were excellent for the more
experienced suilers, u larpe slable training boat wus still easentinl ot Hurdowis.
As it heppened o comparulively new class was on the market to fulfil just that
rele, and the Club bought 10 Marine Tutors.

At 16" lony the Marine Tutor was the largest fleet boat Bardowie has had. Yt
wiat o foirly stundurd heuvy displacement fibreglass boul, desipned for truining
with a high boom well out of the way, plenty of spuce und no frilla. Most
impertant they could lie ot a mooring which was essentiul us Lhere was no space
lefl on shore. The boats vost only &350 euch but since 9 of them were replace-
ments for oxinting boats, grent was only wvailable on the Lenth, The remaindes
were financed from the solo of the wooden Loatn; from a handuome snonymous
donation; amd by o doustlon of one boab sach from the Hutional Pluying Fields
Aosociation and Coledonian Yueht Services.

The fleet was Further increesed st the end of 1973 by the donaticn of 2 Skipper
Dinghies from Dunhills, who were actively sponsoring sailing at the time.
However, in 1976 thuse Louls were replaced by 4 Losers which were secondhand
from the I.Y.R.U. Youth Championships at Largs. Thu Lasers were finunced
purtly by the sule of the Skippers and partly from fund raising, &3 an expected
granl did not materislise, and one was donated by the Parent Club. ™he Lasers
were agoain o departure from previous Bardowie boats, in that they were single-
hunded bouts and therefore could not fulfil the Club's primary role of teaching.
Fer thiu resson they were roceived with mixed feelings, although they were
undeubludly populsr with the more active members, who took them to muny open
meetings away from Bardowic. In this sence it was argued that they provided
advanced Lraining.

The Buardowle fleet by 1976 numbered some 27 boata - 10 Larka, 10 Murine Tuters,
It Lasers, two Nowing Dinghies and one Dory. These hoats, together with the
dory enpgine, and property including an egeing Clubhouse, stretched the Club's
rogources to the limit. llowover, it was all worthwhile since the membership
was then approaching 250, und on many cccasions 60 or 70 members would be at
the Club ot one time, using all the boats, although by now the Club closed
for sailing at nbout & p.m. at weskends. Undoubtedly the Open Days at the
beginning of cach season contributed greatly to the increase in Membership and
60 ulso did the lowering of the age limit for entry.

The minimum age limit of 14 had already been reduced to 12-in 4948, However,
in response teo muny requests at Open Duys, it wes finally reduced to & in

1976 provided sn udult uccompanied members under 12, It wuas also being noted
by this time thet there was a large tronsient membership, with some 70 or 80
members joining snd leaving each year. Bardowic was by now cleurly being
widuly used as u place to learn to snil and na dinghy sniling i itas ows right
wui now do well eotablished, muny more people than proviously woere moving on
and buying theie own boalu.,  Such was the dumand for oualling ab Bardowie that
in 19Y9 a puid Steward wns introduced to keep the Club open during the day in
July and August, and %o defray the cost of the Steward's wages, o small
odditicnal peyment was mede Ly members using the Club at that time. This was,
of course, sutisfying a demand that had existed when J. MeIntyre was Cuptain
and ulso re-inlroduced the paid Wuterman who was engaged in the 1950's,  The
presence of the Stuward further helped to deter would-be vanduls, who by now
Were 4 serious menace.

Despite the increase in membership during the 9Q's, Points Racing never again



occupied all five nights of the week. Mondays and Thursdays were the dominant

nights of the week, although racing did take place on Fridays and Tuesdays,
which at timea developed into a Ladies’ Night. While the Thursday Nipght racers
dominated the 50's and 60's, the 70's belonged toe Monday night racing, and
after Jock Fleming won in 1970 only three namea; Rounie Dunn, Douglas Murray
and Dod Whyte appeared during the 70's, until in 1980 Alan Weir, ngain some-
cne of a younger generation, took the Trophy for which his father hod so often
been runner-up.

Not only did the 70's see the coming and going of several boats, they also saw
more Captains and Secretaries than any previcus decade. When Colin White took
over as Captain from Bill Carey in 1945 it was, as it always had been, with no
finite period of service in sight. By the time Jock Fleming became Captain in
1971 he stipulated that the Constitution should be changed to require n
minimum ¢f twn yearas' service, but a maximum of four, since without this
limitation very few people were willing to take on the duty, Although Jeck
Fleming served for five years, subsequent Cnptains hnve opted for shorter
terms with John Carmichael servinp three years from 1976-78, and Dod Whyte

two years from 1979-80. The Captain at the time of the fiftieth anniveraary,
Douglas Murray, has been in office since 1981 but is likely to retire after
the 1683 season.

Rardowie Secretaries, too, have been more numercus in the 70's than in previcuas
eras. The poat had lapaed during J. McIntyre'n Captainey, which of courne

included the War and when Victor Dare, who is nlsc a pasl Commodore of the Club,

ansumed the role of Secretary in 1948, it was largely because the members

wanted proper minutes of the A.G.M. However, as the Club grewin nopldetication,

so too did the duties of Secretary. Victer Dare held the post for 18 yenrs
until it transferred to Douglas Murray in 19G6. Ry thia time it was no simple
matter of keeping minutes, ns the Secretary was almost as deeply involved in
the running of the Club as the Captain. DBobby Taylor bhecame Secretary in 1975
nnd held the poat until 1977. l!owever, his auccennor, Dod Whyte, only ntayed
for a year as he moved to Cnptain in 1979. The Sacretary since 1979 haa boen
llamish Gibb. llowever Tobby Taylor has now moved back into n new poaition of
Treasurer, which was created in 1982.

THE RACING SCENE

It is worth digressing at this gtage to the racing scene. Inter-club team
racing had been a feature of Bardowie ever since the earliest days. In the
early 30's one design dinghies were a rarity and Bardowie therefore took the
iniative in extending invitations te other clubs for lovel team racing at
Bardowie. The benefit of course came when the return match took plnce, thus
helping to broaden the members' experience. ’

Team racing was particularly fostered by the Laird Trophy, which in pre-War
days attracted up to 16 teama who raced a meries of knockout competitions,
Although racing for this Trophy stopped during the War, it was reinstated in
1954 and continued to be a popular feature for many yenrs, until during the
Sixties it began to wane in pepularity and by 1965 only one entry wns received.
After a delicate meeting between the Captain, Colin White, and the son of

Mr. Nigel Laird the donor,it was agreed that the format conld be changed and
instead of excluding schools teams, which had been done in 1936, the Trophy
was made exclusively for schools teams in 1966, The effect was dramatic with
ten schools competing in the first year, and by the 1970's as many ns 20
schools, all racing in one day to a complicated permutation of boats and crews
which ensured thorough mixing. This is now estab!ished as one of the Club's
most succesaful racing functions ond, held as it is in October, provides
plenty of work for skippera who have to keep ten hoats in full werking order.
The Laird Trophy-also drew attention to Bardowie nmong achooln, which was no
bnd thing.

In 1966 Mr, and Mre. Brazill, two local remidents of Bardowie, donated a cup to
the Club ss n wny of thanking it Far Lhe many hours of pleasure they had
derived from watching the boats on the Loch. IL was decided thal this cup

should be far a race between the Parent Club and “ardowis, nnd on 17 Auguat 1966

the first Hrazill Trophy was won by Bardewie. "This is another very enjoyable
avent, since although atandnrdn may vary, racing in keen with maximum kudos to
be patlned by Lhe winning nide,  TL also providen n good opportunity for membera
ol the Parent Club, usually Mlag Officers, to pet the ntmespliere of Hardowine
first hand,

Of course the Laird mnd Brazill Trophlen' were not the only tesh racing events
and fardowie tewma travelled mouih to Ayr, epst to Granton nnd nerth te Oban,
Laking on nnd uanndty beoting a1l gomers. Altheugh thors munt be many
memorable races, one of Yardowie's more outstanding victories was at Oban in
August 1974, Desplte the fact that the wind wns bleowing amoke up Kerrera Sound
the tesm wns determined to go out. Of 8 starters only three finished and by
sheer dogrednesa, and sailing under Jib alone, RBardowie had 2 of the finishers
and therefore won by simple strength of numbers,

It was not only the members who could travel and 1966 and 67 saw the first
times thint hantn were tolen 'rom Rardowle Lo roace In the dinghy avento at Clyde
Week,  In 1968 boaln wen' Lo Lhe Holenabureh Small Bast Weekend where wilh
their speclally caleulated Portsmouth Yardstick handiecap of 107, Lhe bheat
position wns 7th cut of 17. Leter, during the mid 70's, the Lnsers were often
Laken to open cvents where bthey could be raced as a clana.

Team Racing continued in the 70's on & more formal note wilh the inlreduction
of the H.Y.A. 'Tenm Rucing Championships in 1971, In an nrrangement looking
remarkably similar to Bardowin's own Laird Trophy af the 30's, Clubs trom nll
over fcollamt competod for n ploce in the Seotbish and nltimntely British
[lnnle. Nardowie reachad Lhe first Seotbinh Area Finnda in 19797 m! npenin in
1975, 2 In 1970 the Club sitretched its resourcen Loo Fur by entering two Lenma
but in olher yenrs up nntil 1997 Bardowie did rensonnbly well, though failing
ever agnin to reach the linals.

In 1975 Bardowie wne eliminnted from the competition in the early rounds by
Larga Sailing Club, thus robbing the Club of the chance to sail the finals on
their home wnter. On AUth September 1975 the Scottish Area Finals were held
at fardowia, New anils bought earlier in Lhe year were kept for the event and
t Larks were horrowed from dinburgh niversity. This allowed Lwa races to bo
sailed simnltnneaunly from a start line vsing n moored Marine Tulor in the
middle of the Loch, Doapite very windy condilions which delnyed the ntart
while all boatys renfed, aaftlefent rreos wors anllod off to show Niinburgh
Miveraily na the winners,

Team Nacing was taken seriously at this time and special training sessions,
organised by Dod Whyte, took place on Sunday evenings for several years during
the mid 70's., Although the R.Y.A, team ruces dominated events there were
other occnsions when lardowie Teams were in action. In 1772 fod Whyte and
Mike Forbes travelled south to the R.Y,A, Youth Trials and did extremely well
by coming 5th.  llowever, unfortunately it was never possible to repant this
trip ns the borrowing of boats proved too difficult. Again in 1977 a team of
6 led by Dod Whyte travelled to loch Morlich to tnke part in the North of
fScotland Tenm Rncing Championahipa, whern they came in hth., Teams have also
taken part in the Mudhook races in the Unreloeh singe they were first opened
to elub teams in 107N,

Bardowie his ulso in recent years played host to other Championshipa beaides



the R.Y.A. Team Hucing Final. The Scottish Universities Championship was held
under the burgee of Glasgow University Sauiling; Club in Murch 1975 ond 1980, und
the first R.Y.A. Scottish Women's Championship wus held ab the Loch in June 1978,

Although not strictly team rucing, o crew register has been maintained by the
Club since the 1950's and through this muny members sailed on thu Clyde und else-
where. The Club huas also been prepured to sponsor Cudets on the S.T.A. Ships

and the yacht "Crusade" won the mini Tall Ships Race on the Clyde in 1974,

while munncd by 4 crew of 12 Burdowie Members, and in 1977 Cadets were also
ubourd the 0.Y.C. yucht "Taikoo" at the Tomutin Races.

One regular team racing event established in the 70's was against the Clydesdale
Bank Sailing Club who, having no facilities of their own to offer, put up a
trophy in 1973 for a race sailed mt Bardowie but with the Bank 5.C. providing
ull the catering. It wasn't upntil 1979, however, that the Bank finally won
their own trophy.

The use of Bardowie by other organisations has slways been permitted iy return
for donations to the Club Funds. The earliest asscciation was with the Scouts

ut the time of Bardowie's inception, and the earliest recorded boats on the Loch
were two carvel built American whalers brought by Naval Cadets during the War,
lowever, the longest-standing arrangement was with the School of Navigation,

who used Bardowie from 1924 until 1966. During most of this time they had two
lurge Jug sailed clinker built whalers on the Loch which of course wrre slso used
by Club Members, Several Glasgow Schools, and even the Police Sub-Agqua Team,
have also used the Club facilities for training.

The Bardowie Trophy collection, which started in 19%4% with the Laird Trophy,
increased dramatically in 1973 and 1974, with the introduction in the first year
Opie Quaich donated by friends following the death of John Opie, for a Stewsrd's
Huce at the Regatts, wnd the Thursday Trophy donated by those members who had
sailed at the Loch on Thursday evenings regularly since the late 40's for the
Gentlemen's Race, which had strangely never had & cup in all its history. In
1974 a McRobert Thistle Cup was presented and used to provide a prize for the
Marine Tutors Skipper'sa Race. However, with the selling of the Tutorsa, this
Cup s now likely to be awarded to the winner of a Caduets' ruce for the under
18's. These Trophies joined other well-established Trophies at the Regatta -
the Beginners Cup presented in 1950 by Findlay Paterson for the winner of the
rigeging and sailing race for members who had pudsed their test within tho
previous yeur;y the Ladies' Ruce Cup presented in 1953 by W.['. Findlay for the
Ludiea' Race - a cup completely dominated by Jeun Stevenson (Tindal), whe hus
won it no fewer than 14 times; und the Skipper's Cup presentod in 1951 by

H.W, Trail for the winner of the race for boat Skippers - these members without
whom the boats would never be kept in working order. The Bruazill Trophy hws
already been mentioned and, of course, the supreme prize and the one most keanly
contested, is the Points Racing Trophy, fittingly presented by the "father" of
Bardowie -~ William Lyall in 1935.

MODERN TTMES

One modern social problem which Bardowie did not escape was vandalism. There
had always been bresk-ins from "good, honest thieves" but by the 60's wanton
destruction was starting, When the Larks were bought in 1969 & security fence
was required and by the mid 70's the Clubhouse windows were belng boarded up

or replaced with unbreakable plastic sheeting. Ilowover, on 11 July 1977 the
first really bad act of vandalism resulted in the sail shed being destroyed by
fire, only months after electricity had been installed. Inside the shed were
23 sets of sails for Larks, Marine Tutors and Lusers, L Lasers snd 30 Life-
Juckets, aa well as numerous spares, all of which were totally destroyed. Only
quick action by pussers-by saved the Luarka outside., It appeared that sailing

would have to slop for the first time ever but by the next duy sufficient old
suila hod beoen rescuwsd from various membera' attics to equip B Larkas. The
following wueek ' Murine Tutors' seils which Jockells had on the shelf were
duliveread, and within 3 weeks ull the bouts hud now sails. The mplucement of
tie Lawers took longer while insurance problems were cleared und eventually
only two were replaced in time for the 1978 senson,

The eplacemsnt of the shed itaelf, which was in concrete, was also deloyed until
1979 since ils losa left vacant a site which was beilng conaidered for a new
Clubhouse,  ''he idea for a Clubhouse was puraued with professional usaistance
from Club members right through Lo a detailed sstimute and recelpt of planning
permisasion, wand although various methods of raiaing the £60,000 nacesanry

for its constlruction were considered, it was felt by 1978 that the project was
too ambitious and it was dropped.

Consideration of facilities at Hardowie did, however, prompt another sub-
committee Lo look into the Section's future in 1979 and 80. Iy now {ha change
tn Bardowiu's relulionship with the Parent Club since 19352 was becoming marked.
In 1942 the Club hud 482 members with 121 at Bardowie. Sailing in heavy
dieplncement dinghies wus a prelude to sailing in larger boats on the Clyde

and further alield. In 1980 the Club had about 1700 members with 240 at
Burdowie, The Parent Club, which had held its first ocean race in the same
yewr an it seb up the Dinghy Secticn, had now raced as far away us Norway and
Brittuny, and with Tomatin, was running the largest Regatta in Brituain, oulside
Cowes, while at Burdowle members were planing round the Loch in high speed
Lurics and Lasers. Dinghy swiling was now a eport in ita own right and many
dinghy suilors wouldn't be seen dead in a keelboat. Conversely, many keelboat
sailora thought they were sbout to die when they stepped into a light displace-
ment dinghy ul Bardowie's Brezill Cup! Within the Club, finance was becominy
more and more complicetud with the many commitmenta of the Cruising Club.
Inflation hud tilen its tell and the days of large donations to keep Bardowie
going were ending (though some very generous donations must still be acknow-
ledged). One obvious soluticn which had been mooted for years wus thut Bardowie
should become a totally independent Club, This was put to the General Meeting
of thu Crutuing Club on %1 March 1980, and this meetlng approved in principle a
resolution that would have aafepuonrded the Parent Club's flnanciel interosts sand
created a new independent eailing club at Bardowie. 'The resclution also called
for more detall to be provided by Lhe next General Meeting before the proposals
could linully be adoptud. llowever, by thut time much more work had Leen done
an the proposals and plens for un independent Nardowie were altercd, to a
resolution Lo revitslise llardowie within the framework of the Clyde Cruising
Club, Vinancial relationships betwsen Oardowie snd Lhe Club as o whole were
formal ‘swd and the idea of & recognised boat replacement fund, first suggested
in 1953, was finally implemented.

The sophisticatlon achieved on the financial side by the 80's wns quite the
reverse of whut wns needed by then on the physical side of Bardowie. 'The
facilities and equipment had become too sophisticated. By 1570 the Larks had
serious defects on the seums of the buoyancy tanks which had to be repuired

to prevent lealtaye. A major effort wus mude to repair these ut Dardowle,
However, despile the use of heaters to achleve the cerrect conditions it
bucumae apparent that fibregloss could not be used effectively ot Bardowie in
winter, 5o over the winter of 1977/78 the Larks had major professionsal repuirs
carried cut in Glangow.

The number of bouts and amount of equipment and property have already been
mentioned ond awlthough the major fitting out of wooden hoats had been
eliminated, shoer numbers made maintenance during the gemson. far preater.

In the heydey of the wooden boats, the skippering system introduced before the
War Ly J. Helntyre, wheruby one membur looked after vach bout, vnusured great
rivelry to see whose was the best kept dinghy. During the winter a chart was



pinned up in the Boatshed detailing every coat of paint and varnish that the
hoat required. Two coats inside and on the deck, varnlsh on sll the bright-
work and two undercoats and a top coat on the bottom and topaides plus spars,
floorboards, rudders, tillers, etc. Boats were lovingly rubbed down, [illed
and painted, and some members were known to come out when no=-onr else wns
around to put on a top coat of gloss which wns not allowed to have one speck
of duat. lHowever, c¢hanging trends in lelsure activitiean meant that members
were no longer able to give the single-minded attentlon te Bardowia that had
baen possible in the past, and it was difficult to raise members enthusinsm
for even the minor work required on a f{ibreglass boat.

Perhaps Bardowie's success lies in ite ability to adapt to prevailing
conditions, and the conclisions of the Sub-Committee in 1980 included a
recommendation that the Club should revert to one class of easily maintained
boats, which could be used for training and still give good racing. The
G.P.14 hos been around for decades and has well proved itself to he what it
was intended to be - a Qeneral Purpose Boat. The decision was teken in 1980
to replace the Larks and Marine Tutors with G.P.1'a, and in 198° six G.P.'n
were delivered to Bardowie in time for Open Day, mfter an all-night dash from
England through blizzards. 1981 was the last year of the Larks nt Bardowie
and by 1982 the fleet had increased to 9 G.P.'s and two Marine Tutors; the
Larks and other Marine Tutors having been sold. The G.P.1h is in many wayse
the modern equivalent of the traditional Bardowie boat. It is 14 f{t. long
with a very standard layout incorporating built—in buoyancy. Acknowledging
the fact that maintenance is difficult, the boats are completely bnsic with
no self-balers or transom flaps or jib tensioning devices. Simplicity and
rugredness are the keynotes, with such details ne snap ghacklea arliced on to
prevent less, and a strong rudder with permonently attached tiller that will
surely end one ofthe worat recurring problems with all fleets - that of
rudders and tillera breaking., The woodwork of the hoata ia in tenk and is
deliberately not varnished to reduce maintenanes. Thim lnteat flent of boats
which wns supplied by Bossom's Noatyard, with sails by Jnck lolt, cost arouvnd
£4500 ench, which compares with the cost of the original fleet 50 yeare nrpo
of only £16 per boat including sails, and the fleet wns bought from the male
of the old boats, donations to the Jubllee Fund and record revenue surpluses
following a reappraisal of the Bardowie subseription mstructure, again leaving
main Club funds untouched.

The G.P.'s were not the only new craft to be seen at Bardowie in 1981, as for
the first time members brought their own in great numbers. Boarderiling had
come to Bardowie and so enthusiasstically was it carried on, that an early
winter series of races was held on Sundays late in 1981, though the last had
to be cancelled due to ice on the Loch. The enthusiasm for sailbeards
continued into 1982, when for a modest charge members could hire a board at
the Loch. Races for boards were included in the 1982 Jubilee Regatta and

the Autumn series repeated, with well over 30 boards racing =znd sufficient
Lasers for a class start.

However, it is not only on the water that Bardowle enters its 51at year with
new facilities. On Friday, 13th March 1981, vandalism again struck Bardowle
in the way most feared for many years. The changing rooma were gutted by
fire and the rest of the Clubhouse damaged beyond repair. There were some
seven weeks to go before Open Day and clearly no way in which & new Club-
house could be erected before then. However, as on the previous occasion
when fire struck Bardowie, nothing faltered and the Club opened on time,
with teas beinp served ms usual, though this had to be done from the Club-
house stepa, with the girle working in the burned-cut remains of the kitchen.
Insurance settlements inevitably took time and Bardowis survived for the
season of 1981 without the Clubhouse. All the usual events toock place with
only the Laird Trophy being reduced in numbers to ease the catering. The

shell of n concrete Clubhoume wam oventually erected at the atart of the 1982
fepnon nnd after the completicon of the Points Rnclng series many members,
spurred on to s conniderable nxtent hy the Captain, Donglas Murray, geve up
their sniling nnd concentrated on completing the Clubhouse in time for the
Juhilee Regatta. The old Bardowie spirit prevailed nnd, members turning
their hand to any trade, completed the job on the eve of Lhn Regattn,

THE_ JURILYE

Thus Bardowle was Justified in celebrating the completion of the 50th season
of continnous spiling at the Loch. An all day Repgatta was held on I September
1982 in nn_ntmogsphere charged with nostnlgia. Memberm, former members, nnd
most importent, founder memhers, came from pll the nirte and all the ngen,
Btanlery MpcKachnie who hnd atepped in an Seeretary in 1935 when the arpnnis-
ntion wasn feltering, Norrle Chesters who pot hauled up In front of the
Committee for the Tirat "eapsizal™ in 1937, R.C. Warren who won Lthe very
first race on 18 May 1933, Colin Tebbutt, Frank Watson and many more were
there - and who wan going to ank Stanley McKechnie 1f he had pnased his test
when he went for a single handed sail up the Toch? ALY slx Captaina sEill
alive were prencnt nand all har one of the former HDacralaries, ns well as
nhout o dozen l'olntn Bncing winners including Sheenn Reld, the only pirl to
win - and twice at that! Yarns of up vo 50 years apgo were swapped nnd racing,
though in very light ennditleons, was open to rll = memhers or not. Thua it
wns that Willie Tucker, the younp upatart who hnad snntched the l'eints Trophy
Trom the old guard twenty yenrs previcunly, won the Thuraday Trophy despite
clnims that he had not aAniled nll menson. In the evening over 140 membera

abtended a WInffot Dance in Milnpgoavie Town Hall, whern acquaintances nf
maAny yenra ppn were renewed, nnd oa diaplay of photoprapha atrelching back
D0 yeors nparked of f memories of what Bardowile - rnd its members - used to

1lnole lilen,

Rardowle enters ita aecond half century looking forward with a new Clubhouss
and new boatn, nand lookdng back with antisfaction over the last half century,
having tauprht theussamds of people now centlersd 211 over the world how to asil.
Pardowie opened when Lhe 'J' class yochls "bBritannia”, "Shamrock'™, "White
leather', "Welsheda", "Lulworth'" and others were racing ol Clyde Yerck. The
firat dinphies wore solidly built, plenked bonte with wooden spnrs and cotton
snila. A fncket nnd tie was common wear fer aniling and capalzing woan a major
avent. Thers were no reacus bontn or lifejucketa.  Fifty yoars Inter, Lhe
bonts are bullt of lightweight moulded fibreglass with the minimum of wood-
werk. They have melnl snpars and terylene spils, but their cost has jumped to
one hundred times that of the first hoats. Cavsizing is commonplace and wet
suit and lifejacket are the order of the day, with a high speed rescue bont

to deal with smergencies. Mothing could be wider apart than the original
dinpghies nand today's sailbonrds.

The Club has salways moved and sdepted with the times but is sti1) pursuing
essentinlly the mome objrctives ns its founder membera intended, and im still
attracting members despile compelition from sniling schools, Locnl
Authorities nnd other clubs, which can offer much mere sophisticated
facililies including hars -~ A thing which Dardowie, in deference to its
younger members, has never had. ‘The pre-War member will still recognise the
same ranee of activities ns took place in the 30's - COpening Day, eight
weelks of 'ointe Racing, Regatta and, ot the end of the semson, the Laird
Trophy, all conducted under the wntchful eye of Lhe Stewnrds, who sre sti]1
plaoced on a list at the atart of every Aenson to oversee the Club on each of
aver 150 drys' nailing during the yenr,

Sniling at Rordeowie has never stopped for 50 years, throughout the Wer, two
destructive fires nand several Sub-Committees seeking to direct its ways.
The Bardowie exveriment of 1932 ir am unigue in the aniling world today as
it wnn then and there cnn he no doubt that it has been n success.



ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The writing of this account of Bardowie has undoubtedly been m labour of love.
However, it could not have been mccomplished without connidernble arsistance
from othera. In particular I must thank Stanley MacKechnie and Worrie
Chesters, two founder membars who gave me a grent inaight into the early daya
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SKIPPER'S CUP

1957
1952
1953
1054
1465
1956
1957
1958
1959
1960
1961
1662
1603
1004
1065
1966
1907
1568
1969
1970
1971
1972
1973
1974
1975
1976
1977
14978
1979
1980
1081
1982

.

WyrEGOd9oa =L maoHEZ 2

K.

Macdonald
Macdonald
Baird

. Dudman
. Hill
. Barron

Winter
Dudman
Opie
Nicolson
Cpie

. Tucker

Tucker
Dunn
Ross
Murdech

- McKillop
. Aeberli

Whyte

. Brown

Lees
Allison
Stevenson
Stevenson
Carrie
Weir
Whyte
Thomson
Weir
Whyte

. Ireland

Dudman

McRCBERT THISTLE CUP

1973
1974
1975
1976
1977
1978
1979
1680
1981
1982

.« .

ZoUOPmadin X e

=)

Weir
Miller
Reid
Cairnie
Macdonald
Gibb
Green
Aiken
Boyd

Race

CAPTAINS

1935-48
1949-5h
195564
1965=70
1971-75%
1976-78
1979-80
1981«

J. McIntyre
J. Harris

W. Carey

C.
J
J
D
D

White

. Fleming

. Carmichael
. Whyte

. Murray

CADETS' RACE

1950 G. Dempster
1951 V. Smail

- 1952 M. Turner
1953 M. Themseon
1954 J. Boyd
1955 J. Greenaway
1956 A. Grant
1957 J. Blyth
1958 J. Cpie
1959 A. Muir
1960 D. Murray
1961 L. Anderson
1962 R. Taylor
1663 D. Taylor
1964 J. Sidebottom
1965 8. White
1966 M. Dunn
1067 P. Aoberli
1968 C. Whyte
1969 C. Allison
1970 C. Naylor
1971 C. Scoble
1972 G. Cairnie
1973 &, Barr
1974 R. Harding
1975 E. Thomson
1976 D. Dickson
1977 M. Elder
1978 J. Weir
1979 D. Aiken
1980 R. Boyd
1981 S. Newlands
1982 J. Wink

QPIE QUAICH

1973 D. Whyte
1974 D. Whyte
1975 D. Whyte
1976 D. whyte
1977 D. Mollison
1978 P. Brown
1979 C. Ritchie
1980 C. Carrie
1981 A, Welr
1982 D. Whyto

BARDOWIE

CAPTAINS, SECRETARIES AND TROPITY WINNIRS

POINTS

1935
1936
1937
1938
1946
19h7
1948
1949
1950
1951
1952
1953
1954
1955
1956
1957
1958
1959
1960
1961
1962
1963
1964
1965
1966
1567
1968
1969
1970
1971
1972
1973
1974
1975
1976
1977
1678
1979
1980
1981
1982

W.
A.
H.
S.
No
S.
.

TROPHY

« Bergius .

Lyon
Baird
Grieve
Sand eman
Race
Sandeman °
Rell
Carlaw
Macdonald
Carlaw
Sharp
Turner
Hill
Carlaw
Macdonald

. Nicholson

Carlaw
Carlaw
Sharp

Tucker

. Carlaw
. Fleming

Sharp

. Macdonald

Carlaw
Carlaw
Sharp

. Fleming

Dunn

. Murray

Dunn
Whyte
Whyte

. Murray
. Whyte

Murray
Whyte
Weir
Whyte

. Carrie

LADIES® CUP
1953 M. Watson
1050 8. Mathleson
1955 J. Tindal
1956 DL Deld
mmo7 k. Grieve
1055 1, Tindal
1959 J, Tindnl
1900 J. Stovenson
1961 P. Johnaon
1962 A. Jehnson
1964  P. Johnoon
1964 P, Johnson
1965 S, ¥Watson
1066 J. Stevenson
1967 G. Weir
1unf  J, Stevensen
1669  J. Stevenson
1070 J. Stevennon
1071 J. Stevenaon
1972 ©. Wateson
197% J. Stovengon
1970 J. Stevenson
1094 5. Matthow
1076 J. Stevenson
1977 &, Anderson
1978 J. Stevenson
1079 2. Anderson
1980 J. Steovension
1954 5. Wilson
1082 5. Wilson

BRAZILL TROPHY

1966
1967
1068
1113
100
1971
1992
16974
1()}:"{
19742
1976
1977
1998
1079
1080
16081
1087

Bardowle
Bardowle
Bardowie
Souiorn
Seniora
Bardowie
Senlora
Dnrdowia
Hupdowie
Seniors
Seniors
RBardowie
Bardowie
fardowie
Tie
Nardowie
Rardowie

SECRETARIES

1934-35
1926-3%7
194865
1 9(—'6__?!.
1975=77
1978
1979-

W. Lyon

5. MacrKachnie
V. Darwa

D, Murrey

R, Taylor

D, Whyte

H. Uinbb

LAIRD TROPHY

1934
1955
1936
16237
1938
1954
1655
1956
1957
1958
1999
1960
1961
1962
1963
1964
1965
1966
1067
1968
1969
1970
1971
1972
1973
197
1975
1976
1977
1978
19Y9
1980
1981
1982

C.C.C. Lndies

Glnmgow Academicel 5.C.

C.C.C, Seniora

Clyde Corinthian Y.C.
Clyde Corinthian Y.C.
Cove & Kilcreggan 8.C.
Royal Clyde Y.C.
Helenahurph S.0,

Cove & Kilcreggan 5.C,

C.C.C. Nardowle
CLG.C. Nardowle
C.C.C. Rurdowie
C.C.C. Rardowie
C.C.C. Bardowie
C.C.C. Bardowie

Clyde Cnnoe Club
Clyg@e Cance Club
Glangow Acndemy
Jordanhill School
Geo. Watson's College
Loretto

No Race

Kelvinaide Acedemy
Dunoon Grommar
Rothesay Academy
Edinburgh Academy
Rothrony Acadumy
Dearaden Academy

e, Wateson's College
NMutcheron's Grammar
Chan fligh School
Leretto

Rotheaay Academy
Kdinburgh Academy

THURSDAY_TROTIY

1973
1074
1975
1976
1977
1978

1979

1930

1581
1982

W, Weir

N. Murrny

M. Jonrna

T, Otlonrke
A Welr

N. Macdonald
(A, Muir

(. Whyie

h. Weir

R. Irelsnd

W. Tucker



